
Memorandum 

 

 

 

 

    
 

 

A. Calendar 

B. MONDAY, NOVEMBER 26
th

   

1. 6:30 pm - Finance & Budget and City Council Meeting  

a. Approval of Minutes 

b. Amusement License Fees on Gaming 

2. 7:30 pm - Safety & Human Resources Committee Joint Meeting with Freedom, Napoleon, 

Harrison Townships and Henry County South Joint Ambulance District 

a. Approval of Minutes 

b. EMS Costs & Revenues 

C. TUESDAY, NOVEMBER 27
th

 

4:30 pm – Civil Service Commission Meeting 

 

D. WEDNESDAY, NOVEMBER 28
th

 

6:30 pm - Parks & Recreation Board Meeting 

Informational Items 

1. Ohio Municipal League Bulletin/HB 601 

 

 

rd 
Records Retention 

CM-11 - 2 Years 

TO:            Mayor & Members of Council 

FROM:  Jon Bisher/rd 

SUBJECT:        General Information 

DATE:        November 23, 2012 



Calendar
Sunday Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday Saturday

25 26 27 28 29 30 1

2 3 4 5 6 7 8

9 10 11 12 13 14 15

16 17 18 19 20 21 22

23 24 25 26 27 28 29

30 31 1 2 3 4 5

BISHER  - Vacation 6:30 PM Finance & Budget 

Comm. and City Council 

Meeting

7:30 PM Safety & Human 

Resources Committee Meeting

AV - Sheryl

4:30 PM Civil Service 

Commission Mtg.

6:30 PM Parks & Rec Board 

Mtg.

10:00 AM Christmas Parade

7:00 PM City COUNCIL 

Meeting

8:00 PM Technology & 

Communication Committee

AV - Dan

6:30 PM Electric Committee

BOPA Meeting

7:00 PM Water/Sewer 

Committee Meeting

7:30 PM Municipal 

Properties/ED Committee 

Meeting

AV - Rox

AMP  - Bisher AMP  - Bisher

6:00 PM City TREE 
Commission Meeting

7:00 PM City COUNCIL 

Meeting

8:00 PM Parks & Rec 

Committee Meeting

AV - Dan

6:30 PM Finance & Budget 

Committee Meeting

7:30 PM Safety & Human 

Resources Committee Meeting

HOLIDAY - "Floating" / Offices Closed

HOLIDAY - Christmas BISHER  - Vacation BISHER  - Vacation BISHER  - Vacation BISHER  - Vacation

BISHER  - Vacation 5th Monday-No Scheduled Meetings

BISHER  - Vacation

HOLIDAY - New Year's Day

BISHER  - Vacation

BISHER  - Vacation

November 2012
S M T W T F S

1 2 3
4 5 6 7 8 9 10
11 12 13 14 15 16 17
18 19 20 21 22 23 24
25 26 27 28 29 30

...............................

...............................

...............................

...............................

...............................

December 2012
S M T W T F S

1
2 3 4 5 6 7 8
9 10 11 12 13 14 15

16 17 18 19 20 21 22
23 24 25 26 27 28 29
30 31

...............................

...............................

...............................

...............................

...............................

January 2013
S M T W T F S

1 2 3 4 5
6 7 8 9 10 11 12

13 14 15 16 17 18 19
20 21 22 23 24 25 26
27 28 29 30 31

...............................

...............................

...............................

...............................

...............................

 Monthly Calendar CouncilCalendar December 1 - 31, 2012 

© 2012 Lotus Development Corp. Page 1 11/23/2012 at 9:56 AM 



 

 

City of Napoleon, Ohio 
 

FINANCE & BUDGET COMMITTEE 
 

LOCATION: City Offices, 255 W. Riverview Avenue, Napoleon, Ohio  43545 
 

 

Meeting Agenda 
 

Monday, November 26, 2012 at 6:30 PM 
 

I. Approval of Minutes (In the absence of any objections or corrections, the minutes 

shall stand approved.)  
A. October 22 

B. October 29 

C. November 2 

D. November 3 

 

II. Amusement License Fees on Gaming (Tabled) 

 

III. Any Other Matters Currently Assigned To Committee 
 

 
 
 

         ___________________________________                                                               

         Gregory J. Heath, Finance Director/Clerk 
 

 
               



 

Finance and Budget Committee Meeting Minutes 1 11/14/2012 

City of Napoleon, Ohio 
FINANCE AND BUDGET COMMITTEE 

Meeting Minutes 
Monday, October 22, 2012 at 6:30 PM 

 

         PRESENT  

Committee Christopher Ridley – Chair, John Helberg, Jason Maassel, Mayor Ronald Behm 

City Staff 

 

 

 

Others 

Trevor Hayberger, Law Director 

Gregory J. Heath, Finance Director/Clerk of Council 

Sheryl Rathge, Executive Assistant 

Robert Weitzel, Police Chief 

News Media, Patrick McColley, Matt Perry 

Recorder Barbara Nelson 

         ABSENT 

Members 

Staff 

 

None 

Dr. Jon A. Bisher, City Manager 

 

Call To Order 

 

Chairman Ridley called the meeting to order at 6:30 PM 

Minutes Stand Approved Minutes from the September 24, 2012, meeting stand approved as presented. 

 

Amusement License Fees... 

Remained Tabled 

 

Amusement License Fees On Gaming remained tabled. 

 

 

3
rd

 Quarter Budget 

Adjustments 

 

 

Heath distributed the proposed 3
rd

 quarter budget adjustments (attached) and 

explained them in detail. Most of the changes are due to the increased cost of gas and 

diesel, which was not anticipated in the 2012 budget. There are also some potential 

adjustments relating to items previously discussed. Dr. Bisher may bring these on 

November 5. 

 

Motion To Approve 3
rd

 

Qtr Adjustments 

 

    Passed 

    Yea-4 

    Nay-0 

Motion: Helberg                      Second: Maassel 

To recommend approval of the 3
rd

 quarter budget adjustments 

 

Roll call vote on above motion: 

Yea-  Helberg, Maassel, Behm, Ridley 

Nay- 

 

Services For Annual 

Financial Report 

Preparation 

 

 

 

 

 

Heath said Schonhardt & Associates (S&A) helps us prepare the annual CAFR and 

GAAP statements. GAAP statement and the CAFR are based on modified accrual 

basis. GAAP is required by the State. We do the CAFR as part of the continuing 

reporting requirements on the debt. We submit it to the GFOA for certification and it 

is our audit report. We just completed the 3
rd

 year of a three year contract. Heath 

proposed continuing the contract for the next three years. The cost is $19,000 per 

year plus some mileage and miscellaneous expenses. This is usually budgeted at 

$500, but all of that is not spent. 

 

Heath introduced Matt Perry from S&A. Perry said his firm has been working on the 

CAFR with the City for the past 17 years. S&A proposes keeping the same cost for 

the next three years as it has the last six years. S&A knows the process and works 

well with the City. They are familiar with all of the City’s funds. Chris Peddicord 

works with them. They’ve had a steady relationship with the City’s audit firm for 

seven years now. The reports take about 172 hours which equals four weeks of work. 



 

Finance and Budget Committee Meeting Minutes 2 11/14/2012 

 

Bond rating companies uses the CAFR to rate the City’s debt and as a result, the City 

gets relatively competitive interest rates. Agencies check whether the City receives a 

certificate from GFOA and that also helps interest rates. 

 

Ridley noted that on page 1 of the proposed contract, it lists a proposal as Appendix 1 

when it is actually titled Professional Fees, not Appendix 1. There are some technical 

things to clean up. Heath said Hayberger hasn’t had a chance to look it over. Ridley 

said the CAFR is a detailed, impressive document. He appreciates the services S&A 

has given the City. Perry said S&A appreciates their relationship with the City. 

Heath will send the contract to Hayberger for review. Ridley asked if suspension of 

the legislation will be needed. Heath said he would like it to be passed under 

suspension, but not emergency. It should be in place for the end of November when 

S&A does their preliminaries. 

 

Motion To Approve 

 

 

 

    Passed 

    Yea-4 

    Nay-0 

Motion:  Maassel                   Second: Helberg 

To recommend awarding the contract to Schonhardt & Associates for the annual 

GAAP & CAFR reporting 

 

Roll call vote on above motion: 

Yea-  Helberg, Maassel, Behm, Ridley 

Nay- 

 

Motion To Adjourn 

 

 

    Passed 

    Yea-4 

    Nay-0 

Motion: Maassel                     Second: Helberg 

To adjourn at 6:45 pm 

 

Roll call vote on above motion: 

Yea- Helberg, Maassel, Behm, Ridley 

Nay- 

 

Date Approved: 

 

____________________ 

 

 

______________________________________________________ 

Christopher Ridley, Chair  



 

Finance and Budget Committee Meeting Minutes 1 11/14/2012 

City of Napoleon, Ohio 
FINANCE AND BUDGET COMMITTEE 

Special Meeting Minutes 
Monday, October 29, 2012 at 7:30 PM 

 

         PRESENT  

Committee Christopher Ridley – Chair, John Helberg, Jason Maassel, Mayor Ronald Behm 

City Council 

 

City Staff 

 

 

 

 

John Helberg – President, Jeffrey Lankenau, Travis Sheaffer, James Hershberger, 

Patrick McColley, Christopher Ridley, Jason Maassel 

Dr. Jon Bisher, City Manager 

Trevor Hayberger, Law Director 

Gregory J. Heath, Finance Director/Clerk of Council 

Chad Lulfs, City Engineer 

Christine Peddicord, Asst. Finance Director 

Recorder Barbara Nelson 

         ABSENT 

Committee Members 

Council Members 

 

 

None 

None 

Call To Order 

 

Chairman Ridley called the meeting to order at 7:33 PM. 

 

Minutes Stand Approved Minutes from the October 22, 2012 meeting stand approved as presented. 

 

Potential Future 

Assessments on Projects 

 

Heath reviewed and described municipal special assessment procedures and what the 

City is allowed to assess. Most operational services are assessable. The process is 

very detailed and is considered a “taking.” It should be started at least 60-90 days 

ahead of a project. He distributed a checklist with dates to be filled in so Council can 

see what has to be done when. With the State taking away funds, the City has control 

of utility rates, assessments, and some fees to bring in revenue. Income tax is a voted 

rate and we don’t know how much we will get. The State is trying to take that now. 

Bisher said local government funds were grabbed to balance the State budget. 

Inheritance tax disappeared. 

 

Heath gave some examples for perspective on assessments. An assessment study was 

done on the Woodlawn Project. It was estimated to cost $2,700,000, with 

assessments totaling $1,100,000. This is just shy of 40%. If that had been done on 

the whole Clairmont, Woodlawn & W. Washington Project, it would have been 40% 

of $6,400,000. Bisher asked the question, “Should the person who benefits pay for 

the improvement or should everyone pay?” He believes we should socialize costs for 

the water plant or sewer plant, but a new street helps the value of a person’s 

property. Assessments go through the Assessment Equalization Board (AEB). We 

assessed by the truck stop, some people came to the AEB and said they were 

assessed in previous sewer projects. The AEB felt that was true and not fair and 

adjusted their assessments by the amount previously paid. The bill is put on property 

taxes. Homeowners don’t have to come up with the money immediately. It comes 

back on taxes each year. 

 

Heath said Council has control on assessments. The cost per household depends on 

how assessments are proscribed. Lulfs said Woodlawn would have been $10,000-

$20,000 per property. Heath said assessments cannot be done retroactively. Helberg 

said Council used to do assessments to the fullest. The City paid 50%. Heath said 

Council directed Clairmont at 98%. Helberg said we were forced to because of the 



 

Finance and Budget Committee Meeting Minutes 2 11/14/2012 

EPA. McColley asked if assessments could be implemented in phases. Bisher said it 

is done on a project by project basis. He would like to say this is our policy and we 

will begin it on this project. If it is just a sewer project, people are assessed based on 

the service area. The south side was assessed that way. Heath said it was a 

$3,000,000+ project paid off by assessments. Bisher said you must define the service 

area and who benefits from it. 

 

Helberg said Woodlawn was cheaper because it was a thoroughfare and the City 

picks up part of the thoroughfare cost. Bisher said Council’s policy for that typically 

is: if it is a new subdivision, we tell the builder to put the cost of lots for a normal 

street but the City pays for upsizing. We socialize that cost and have an assessment 

in effect on the rest, but the builder includes the assessment in the price of the lots. 

Heath said the waterline on Strong St. could be assessable. We will have an 

extremely difficult time debting it from the water fund. The money is not there. 

Bisher said the water on Strong St. would not be brown if we had assessments. We 

could have done it three years ago. 

 

Helberg said we haven’t assessed waterline projects for the last 50 years. Lulfs said 

planning assessments for next year’s projects make them almost impossible. He 

suggested looking at 2014 for assessing projects. Otherwise, we won’t be able to get 

2013 projects done on time. Heath said no decisions are needed tonight. Bisher said 

this is not part of the 2013 budget. Heath said if Council wants to give direction for 

the future, the checklist gives staff direction as to when they need to present a project 

to Council to meet the assessment guidelines and time tables.  

 

McColley said he would like to see the enterprise funds stabilize rates. We need to 

stay within our means. Some people will want their road redone and won’t be willing 

to pay for it. Bisher said assessments are not optional once Council decides to do 

them. Hayberger said every assessment doesn’t have to be 98% assessed. Lankenau 

said we could start at 30% in year one and do more the next year in order to ease it 

in. Hayberger said you have to set the cost at a certain point. McColley suggested 

waiting to see what the performance audit says. 

 

Helberg asked what projects are out there to be assessed. Lulfs said some are strictly 

design for 2014 including Oberhaus I/I, Southside I/I. Bisher said the southside 

already paid once and others didn’t, then we go back and make them pay again. 

Helberg said they may get a pass on that. Lulfs said there is nothing much other than 

sewer projects. We will have to do Oakwood at some point and it will probably be 

$6,000,000. Bisher said if people meet the tests for a CDBG grant, we can’t assess 

them. Lulfs said we will have to tackle some projects in town where the roads are 

shot. Helberg said Park St. from Glenwood to Sheffield has never been fully 

improved. Lulfs said that is on the books for 2015. Lankenau said the rates are 

already high. We can’t put these costs entirely in the rates. We could start assessing 

in 2014. Helberg said we can do this project by project. He asked Lulfs for a list of 

possible projects to consider. 

 

Bisher said if Council wants the numbers on assessments, they will have to spend 

money to find out. Lankenau said if we go down that road, we have to stick to our 

guns. Helberg said it should not be done at 98%. McColley asked the maximum 

amount of time the City can assess. Bisher said it is typically 20 years.  This creates a 

revenue stream. There are three options for the homeowner: pay for the assessment 



 

Finance and Budget Committee Meeting Minutes 3 11/14/2012 

upfront, pay over the period of the assessment, or go to the AEB and ask for an 

extension. Sometimes it is deferred for 10 years.  

 

Mayor Behm asked if this was standardized in the past. Bisher said it was not. Behm 

said people with a deeper sewer line should not have to pay more. Helberg said it is 

relative to the sewer tap. Heath said the cost is the cost. Bisher said if the water main 

goes by your house and you use it, you would be assessed. The sewer is an area and 

laterals run into it. Helberg said if you are only fixing a side street, only the side 

street gets assessed. Bisher said we try to do it fairly. Heath said if we usually use a 

8” line, but the City wants a bigger 24” line, we socialize the difference between the 

8” and 24”. Lulfs said waterlines almost always go in at 5’ deep. The EPA broke 

projects down into interceptor areas. If we are working on an interceptor, we assess 

everyone who dumps into that interceptor. Ridley said raising rates and assessing are 

both bad options. We must use our best discretion. Bisher said most cities assess. 

 

Review Of Proposed 

Revenues For 2013 

Budget 

 

 

 

 

 

Heath distributed and reviewed proposed revenues of about $45,000,000 in the 2013 

budget. The State impacted revenues greatly. Our .3% income tax has saved us. The 

2 mills is down because valuations are down from $150,000,000 to $143,000,000. 

Personal property tax is gone per the State. We got $50,000 in 2010 and 0 now. 

Bisher said the estate tax and cigarette tax brought $100,000-150,000 in 2008-2011. 

 

Heath said his concern is income tax. Council needs to protect City revenues. The 

legislature has not been our friend. This affects citizens and leaves less money for 

police/fire, etc . We will be hit hard if the State does what they propose with City 

income tax. They want to grab what our citizens voted to be used here. Council must 

talk to legislators. Hayberger said the State is trying to usurp home rule by gutting 

your choice. Bisher said if you have no money, the State will operate the City for 

you. The Ohio Constitution allows home rule. It is hard to change that, but they can 

still take money away. The Governor wants to do away with State income tax and 

replace it with natural energy tax. He will take City tax too. You can have home rule, 

but no money to run the City and the State decides what our level of service will be. 

Behm said some states operating with no income tax are the fastest growing states. 

 

Heath distributed a draft of revised legislation for the split of income tax money. 

Recreation gets its full levy amount and the net after operating expenses is split. The 

ordinance says 50% general fund (GF) and 50% capital improvement fund (CIP). We 

have been running 62% GF and 38% CIP. We estimate $3,200,000 revenue from 

income tax next year. The last time changes to the Income tax were made the State 

said 125 plans are not taxable. This cost the City $250,000 per year. Withholding is 

up 6%. Business profit is down a lot. We may not make this up in payments in 

October. It is down 0.12% now. Bisher said we are doing a final budget, but don’t 

have final numbers. Sheaffer suggested thinking about 100% credit for people who 

work out of town. Bisher said he gave up on fighting that fight. Sheaffer said we 

could start out with 25% credit and work up slowly. Bisher said we have a lot of 

people who work out of town.  

 

Heath said we budgeted $5,600,000 for the general fund in 2012 and estimate to 

bring in about $5,700,000. We are taking it back to $5,300,000 for 2013. Ordinance 

No. 088-11 reverts back to splitting tax revenue 50% GF and 50% CIP for 2013, but 

the general fund will not balance that way. Bisher said staff recommends leaving the 

split for 2013 the same as in 2012 with 62% GF and 38% CIP. Heath recommended 



 

Finance and Budget Committee Meeting Minutes 4 11/14/2012 

taking all of Section 1(b) out that divides this money 50/50. It sets a dangerous 

precedent. Council can change the percentages any time. We cannot balance the 

general fund without 62%. Helberg said he would rather that Section 1(b) say 

Effective January 1, 2014 and leave percentages at 50/50. That will be a tickler and 

Council will address it every year. Hayberger said the problem is that if something 

happens to Heath, these little things get forgotten. There is a difference between a 

tickler and a right cross. Heath said it is unrealistic to assume we can continue the 

service level we’ve had with the revenue cuts we’ve had from the State and a 50/50 

split. Bisher said the State is flush, but we won’t get our money back. Behm said he 

would like staff to work toward a 50/50 split for 2014. McColley said it may be 

unrealistic, but it is still a goal. 

 

Mayor Behm asked how much we pay employees. Bisher said we cut 3 positions last 

year and 2 this year. Behm asked how many were added on the fire department. 

Bisher said 2 were added, but this cut overtime. The City is people who plow snow, 

fight fires. Council wants to do more with less. We are right on the edge if we get 

heavy snows. You don’t run the City on the third of June at 3:00 pm. It’s 3:00 am on 

March 3 with 3’ of snow. Sheaffer said employees are paying more for healthcare 

costs. Behm said you are fooling yourselves if you think we are not spending more 

on employees while increasing rates and having no capital improvement. When City 

employees make more than the private sector, it’s a problem.  

 

Bisher said citizens are paying for a service they asked for. As an example, it costs 5 

times what it cost 5-10 years ago so we can have a trained paramedic on hand when 

people need one. At one time in this City we never had EMS service. We used to call 

Walkers to pick people up. It is up to Council if they don’t want that service 

anymore. Sheaffer said we have to have highly trained electric workers. Napoleon 

always has the power back on in an hour or two. Hayberger said he has dealt with $8 

an hour police officers and was settling claims every six months. You get what you 

pay for. Sheaffer said police start at $30,000/year and every call they go on could be 

their last one. 

 

 Heath said special funds are set up per ordinance and per Council’s request. He 

anticipates about $792,000 income for Recreation including the recreation levy for 

2013. It will still be a subsidy situation. McColley said Tony Cotter, Parks & 

Recreation Director, did a good job working with the Board, but they are adamant 

about some things and don’t want to change them. We could cut their budget and let 

them deal with it. Bisher said we are not getting where we need to go. He appreciates 

the Board’s work, but their budget gets bigger not smaller. There are no projected 

rate increases for sewer in 2013. The 512 transfer number will change. The 

assessment on the south side comes off in 2012 and is finished. The total current 

projected revenue for the 2012 budget is about $44,800,000 from all sources. 

 

Review Of Proposed 

Personnel Costs For 2013 

Budget 

Heath distributed the Salary & Fringes Summary for the 2013 budget. All unions got 

a 2% increase at the direction of Council and 2% for non-bargaining is also included. 

The Municipal Properties Maintenance Foreman is retiring; that position is not 

included for 2013. A police lieutenant is retiring; that position is funded. A vacancy 

in the fire department is funded. The Human Resource Director is retiring in 

November; that position is budgeted. The Tax Administrator is retiring before the 

end of 2013. The budget includes her position to the end of the year. The Parks & 

Recreation position at the senior center is a union position. It was zeroed out and 



 

Finance and Budget Committee Meeting Minutes 5 11/14/2012 

eliminated at about $15,000 per year. She will be laid off, but we are assuming the 

county will hire her back. If not, the position needs money to pay unemployment 

compensation for next year at approximately 50%. Bisher said we are $20,000 less 

this year on gross pay than last year at this time. We took bodies out last year and 

this year, trying to keep it level.  

 

Heath said there is an issue regarding what Council pays themselves. If you take 

current salaries and raise them to $7,200 for one year of full-time credit for PERS, 

this adds $18,000 to the budget. Bisher said this will build retirement credit.  Heath 

said Council may not be changing it for themselves, but for the next person elected. 

This must be done before the first of the year or Council will have to wait 3 more 

years to do it for the next election. Bisher said this won’t impact the 2013 budget. 

Sheaffer suggested setting the payment to equal the minimum for full PERS credit 

instead of percentage increases in case the law changes again. McColley asked if it 

must be an established amount. Hayberger will check on this. Heath said one 

community did it by City Charter. Hayberger will bring something to the table for 

the next meeting. Bisher said the Mayor makes the minimum amount needed. 

Helberg said we should increase the Mayor by the same amount of our increase. 

Mayor Behm said he talked to Mayors at the OMEA Conference. Most Councils are 

making less than this City makes for cities that are twice this size. Some make $300 

per year. Mayors there make about the same as Behm does.  

 

Heath asked if there were suggestions for revenue changes at this time. McColley 

asked if changes can be made at the meeting on Friday. Heath said the budget is a 

fluid document. It can be amended anytime. Bisher said the major advantage of 

budgeting as we do it that it allows Lulfs to get a head start on everyone else. He can 

go to bid on January 1 and start projects in March. Heath said the ORC says you 

must pass a temporary budget on or before January 1
st
 and a permanent one on or 

before March 31
st
. We try to have a permanent one by January 1

st
. 

 

Chairman Ridley said it would be hard to say we’ll cut elsewhere, but double our 

own salary. Sheaffer said it has been hard at times to find people to serve. Ridley 

said an increase could encourage others and won’t impact us immediately. Helberg 

said the increase is not enough money to make a difference on whether someone 

wants to be on Council. Sheaffer said retirement credits make the difference. 

 

Bisher said we’ll discuss expenses on Friday and Saturday. The Department heads 

will come in to go through their budgets. We hope to be out by 4:00 pm on Friday 

and by noon on Saturday. There are only a couple of additional requests. 

 

Motion To Adjourn 

 

 

    Passed 

    Yea-4 

    Nay-0 

Motion: Mayor Behm           Second: Maassel  

To adjourn at 9:50 pm 

 

Roll call vote on above motion: 

Yea- Maassel, Behm, Ridley, Helberg 

Nay- 

 

Date Approved: 

 

_____________________ 

November 19, 2012 

 

 

______________________________________________________ 

Christopher R. Ridley, Chair  



 

Finance and Budget Committee Meeting Minutes 1 11/23/2012 

 
City of Napoleon, Ohio 

FINANCE AND BUDGET COMMITTEE 

Special Meeting Minutes 
Friday, November 2, 2012 at 8:00 AM 

 

         PRESENT  

Committee Chris Ridley - Chair, John Helberg, Jason Maassel, Ron Behm, Mayor  

City Council 

 

City Staff 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Others 

John Helberg - President, Jeff Lankenau – President Pro-Tem, James Hershberger 

(arrived at 11:42 am), Patrick McColley, Chris Ridley, Jason Maassel 

Matt Bilow, Wastewater Treatment Plant Superintendent  

Robert Bennett, Fire Chief 

Dr. Jon A. Bisher, City Manager 

Denny Clapp, Electric Superintendent 

Tony Cotter, Parks & Recreation Director 

Trevor Hayberger, Law Director 

Gregory J. Heath, Finance Director/Clerk of Council 

Scott Hoover, Water Treatment Plant Superintendent 

Chad Lulfs, City Engineer 

Gloria Mikolajczak, Human Resources Director  

Christine Peddicord, Assistant Finance Director 

Jeff Rathge, Operations Superintendent 

Sheryl Rathge, Executive Assistant 

Judge Amy Rosebrook, Municipal Court 

Dan Wachtman, MIS Administrator 

Robert Weitzel, Police Chief 

Tom Zimmerman, Building Inspector 

News Media 

Recorder Barbara Nelson 

         ABSENT 

 

 

 

Travis Sheaffer was on conference call starting at 1:10 PM, but not physically present. 

 

Call To Order 

 

Chairperson Ridley called the meeting to order at 8:05 am. 

 

Budget Overview 

 

 

 

Dr. Jon A. Bisher, City Manager, explained the budget review process. Revenues 

drive the expense side. Capital improvement is noncontroversial. The harder cuts are 

on the operation side. We have good folks working here. We cut their budgets until 

we got them to balance. We balanced the budget in each area, accounts and enterprise 

funds. Water is the one to pay closest attention to. We hope we don’t need to do 

anything after next year in water increases. 

 

Gregory Heath, Finance Director/Clerk of Council, explained the budget process and 

how to use the budget books. The “Other” expenses include things like copiers, paper, 

etc. Fund balance summaries must be in the black. We are working off estimates from 

2012 and projections for 2013. Bisher said our City budget process worked for the last 

3-4 years when other cities didn’t. Mayor Behm said the goal is to have $1,000,000 in 

the general fund and we have $870,000. 

 

Public Works & 

Engineering 

   Additional Request  

   Two Summer  

    Interns For 2013:  

    $21,920 

TIME: 8:30 AM 

Chad Lulfs, Public Works Director/City Engineer, said he would like to get college 

kids back to help with inspections. They do a great job and provide cheap labor. He is 

requesting two interns for this summer. 

 

Lulfs reviewed his budget with those present. Ridley asked about the jump in non-



 

Finance and Budget Committee Meeting Minutes 2 11/23/2012 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

bargaining salaries. Heath said the Public Works Director position was created in 

2012. We reallocated how it was charged. Lulfs said there has been a reduction of one 

person. Two people are retiring and we are not replacing one, the maintenance 

foreman. We budgeted “0” for salt this year due to having so much left over from last 

year. There are four people less to do snow removal this year. There was almost no 

snow last year. We don’t know if it will work this year or not.  

 

Mayor Behm asked what would be done if there was a snowstorm and water main 

break at the same time. Would we contract out? Bisher said we contract out for 

different things like unlimited pickup. We also cross-train people from different 

departments to use the equipment for snowplowing, etc. If someone is hired in water 

and is working in snow removal, we charge their hours to snow. Ridley recommended 

putting the pre-planned route for snowplowing on the website for citizens to see.  

 

We will do street striping again in 2013.  We didn’t do this for three years and some 

streets had no residual paint left for the new paint to stick to. We are doing the striping 

again in 2013 so we’ll have residual left. A construction inspection truck is included 

in the budget. The head mechanic says it is the worst vehicle in the fleet. We would 

like to get a Chevy 1500 or half-ton 4- door truck. It would cost about $22,500 on the 

State contract. We put $25,000 in the budget. The current truck is a full size ½-ton 

2002 Dodge truck. We can sell it at auction. Mayor Behm asked if the maintenance 

foreman had a truck. Lulfs affirmed. There is a 1998 truck, but there is a maintenance 

person who needs it to do his job. Heath said this is a huge tool vehicle, not a small 

vehicle. We need to replace a 1992 plow truck, a copier and a sewer camera. The 

current sewer camera is VHS and we can’t upgrade it.   

 

The tree program is for trees on City property. After a street is finished, new trees are 

planted. We also trim trees. We try to put costs for tree removal into various projects. 

We need to update the tree inventory. This would be a one-time deal. We added gator 

bags for watering young trees.  

 

Lulfs explained the sidewalk reimbursement program. We are looking at replacing 

concrete streets in town. We changed the old standard. It was 8”-10” by the edge to 6” 

in the middle, then wider. It is now 8” of concrete for everything. Lankenau suggested 

letting residents know before they start working on a street. Lulfs said we won’t close 

the road. We will do one side, then the other. Heath said some of this is assessable. 

Helberg asked for a list to consider. Lulfs said the problem will be timing. We can’t 

work assessments into the 2013 projects. 

 

Bisher said the Kenilworth Project is $375,000. It is divided into streets, water, and 

sanitary sewer. McColley asked about acquiring the strip on the edge. Lulfs said it is 

by West School. We may not get an easement. We have a $225,000 grant for this 

project. It must be wide enough for storm, sanitary and water. The Scott St. design is 

complete. We hope to bid the first of the year if ODOT signs off. We would advertise 

on January 1 and hope to start in mid-March. Helberg asked Lulfs to bid the Scott St 

project in early December if possible.  

 

Lulfs got ODOT to remove the train trestle on 424. We were going to replace the 

joints where there are bumps on E. Riverview, but ODOT agreed to do this at a 

savings of over $100,000 to us. We got a grant for sidewalks under Rt. 24. The 

roadway is in bad condition there. We’re responsible for 20% of construction and all 

engineering costs. Our consultant recommended another grant for that. If we don’t get 

it, we’ll be responsible for the design costs of $260,000 on this $2,000,000 project. 

They plan to have traffic circles north and south of the bypass and sidewalks on the 



 

Finance and Budget Committee Meeting Minutes 3 11/23/2012 

west side only. 

 

We will do asphalt work for parking at the canal basin. This will be paid with a grant. 

Previously, downtown grant money was given to merchants. In the second round, we 

were recipients of $72,000 and spent $12,000. We intend to spend the other $60,000 

on parking. The grant match was bricks for the downtown sidewalks. 

 

The garage rotary fund is an internal service fund that gets billed out. Having a 24-

hour operation is expensive. We bill ourselves for this. Helberg suggested billing out 

more so the loss gets prorated among users to get it back into the general fund. 

 

Jeff Rathge, Operations Superintendent , said he is requesting a mini-excavator. We 

have three backhoes, but they are rubber-tired and can’t reach as far as the mini-

excavator. McColley asked if they could get rid of one backhoe. Rathge said they 

could. The oldest one is at least 15 years old. Lulfs said the contractor’s price is 

$90,000. He will look on the State contract for a price. Behm asked if it would be 

cheaper to rent. Rathge said we would use it more if we didn’t have to rent it. Electric 

is renting one now for the substation. Maassel said we should go down to two 

backhoes if we buy the mini-excavator. Lulfs said the general rule of thumb is not to 

increase the fleet. 

 

The Hudson Street waterline is our CDBG project for next year. We will increase the 

waterline from 1” to 6”. The Strong Street Project will be coming to Council on 

Monday night. Ohio Street has some rusty water, but we don’t have the money to fix 

it now and don’t want to shut Ohio St. when Scott is shut down in 2013, so we may 

come back with it in 2014.  

 

The landfill is closing. We will probably go to Defiance. This will have the biggest 

impact at unlimited pickup time. Fuel will be a big cost. We included money to 

replace recycling bins.  We gain some money on the revenue side of recycling, but not 

off paper and plastic. Many cities have gone to robotic equipment for pickup or to 

privatization. We haven’t had to because we have people who do it for free. Other 

cities come to look at our program and the yard waste site. We have a new recycling 

truck, but need to replace a garbage truck for about $150,000.  

 

We budget 3% for workers compensation, but this varies year to year and can be 

confusing in budget figures. The fuel rotary account represents credits cards for 

getting fuel in vehicles and changed heads on the tanks ($100,000).  We want to be 

sure emergency operations have enough fuel to operate. It is easier to track fuel with 

the cards. President Helberg excused himself from the meeting temporarily. 

 

Municipal Court 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

TIME: 11:20 AM  

Amy Rosebrook, Municipal Court Judge, said the 2013 budget is higher than the 

current one. The City went without a salaried judge for a few months in 2012. When 

the police department files charges, a person is entitled to court-appointed counsel. If 

the police file this charge under State code instead of City, the county picks up the 

court-appointed counsel expense. If it is filed under the City, the bill goes to the City. 

We collected just under $145,000 more in fines and costs in 2012 than 2011. Many of 

the court funds can only be used for specific costs. 

 

Changes need to be made to the court’s computerization. Dan Wachtman recommends 

a new server. We have to get an increase for credit card costs. We are trying to get 

epayments done at a lesser expense by working with Defiance. Epayments was in last 

year’s budget for about $18,000. We project bringing in $35,000. We have $22,000 



 

Finance and Budget Committee Meeting Minutes 4 11/23/2012 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

available and can spend $18,000. This will bring it down to $2,000-3,000 that is not in 

the budget now. She will encumber that money before December 31, 2012. Base court 

costs were $75 in 2010, $80 in 2011 and will be $90 in December 2012.  We can’t 

increase court costs anymore.  

 

Bisher said the court had $19,250 approved for 2012 in the 5700 account. He was told 

they were spending $250. He didn’t know they were spending $19,000 and counted on 

that money being there. He can change that, but it won’t be available in 2013. Judge 

Rosebrook said Bisher didn’t know about it. She thought the website would be up by 

now. Bisher said we will probably go back into the general fund for this. 

 

Heath suggested adding conveyance fees on the bills of people using credit cards. The 

judge said that is why epayments would be less. She doesn’t know if they will pay by 

credit card or cash. She can’t add a service fee afterwards. We want to have a 

computer terminal in the lobby. Heath said we take credit cards but add the fee to the 

bill. (Hershberger arrived.) 

 

Mayor Behm asked where the extra revenue goes. Rosebrook the money that was 

collected was old stuff. It is divided up to various funds mandated by the State. The 

county and State get the majority of it and we get a little. 60% goes back to the State. 

Collecting $150,000 doesn’t do much locally. McColley asked if the court server tied 

to servers here. Wachtman said he would like to talk about that at the next Technology 

Committee meeting.  

 

Law Department 

 

  Additional Request  

  Asst. Law Director:  

   $35,540 

 

 

 

TIME: 12:00 PM 

Trevor Hayberger, Law Director, and Sheryl Rathge, Executive Assistant  

Hayberger said he got rid of the City car for his department and increased the T&E 

budget. A court cost case in Cuyahoga County ran through the budget this year. 

He had three jury trials so far this year. Rathge said we hadn’t had three jury trials in 

the last 7 years. Lankenau said our judge doesn’t take the recommendation of 

prosecutors. Hayberger’s additional request is a part-time Assistant Law Director at a 

cost of $35,000 maximum. He hopes to keep this at $25,000 for all day Monday and 

Thursday plus Tuesday and Friday morning. (Helberg returned.) 

 

Human Resources 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

TIME: 12:10 PM 

Bisher said Gloria Mikolajczak, Human Resources Director, is retiring as of 

November 30, 2012. He hasn’t advertised for the position, but intends to fill it. Heath 

said it is not anticipated to be filled until February 2013. Mayor Behm urged Council 

not to replace this position. McColley said a Human Resources (HR) firm could be 

used and Hayberger can do some of the things. The county handles it that way. Bisher 

funded the position for 10 months. Next year includes 3 sets of union negotiations. 

McColley suggested talking to someone from an HR firm. Bisher detailed a recent 

situation where the HR person worked three days on getting our insurance company to 

allow an employee’s spouse who has cancer to stay in a nursing home. They wanted 

to kick her out. He and Hayberger don’t have that kind of time to spare. He is not 

intending on hiring until March 2013. Lankenau said this can be discussed with the 

performance auditors. 

 

Lankenau is opposed to getting a part-time Assistant Law Director. We just reduced 

the cost of the Law Director from $125,000 to $64,000. He doesn’t want to add 

another $30,000. The job was part-time fifteen years ago.  

 

Building & Zoning 

 

TIME:  12:20 PM 

Tom Zimmerman, Building & Zoning Inspector’s budget is the same as last year or 



 

Finance and Budget Committee Meeting Minutes 5 11/23/2012 

 

 

 

 

less in every area except salary which is an additional 2%. We will be able to 

demolish four houses with the Moving Ohio Forward Grant. It costs about $6,000-

$10,000 to demolish one house. 

 

MIS Administrator 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

TIME:  12:25 PM 

Dan Wachtman, MIS Administrator, could retire at any time. His payout accruals 

were included in the budget at a cost of $33,900. Most of the contract maintenance 

cost is for the phone system, webhosting and Brightnet. We use Sonic Systems or 

Christopher Badenhop to help get projects done. The rest is maintenance and 

software/hardware. McColley noted that from 2011 to 2012 salary cost went from 

$58,000 to $78,000. Bisher said Wachtman is eligible to retire so we paid out some of 

his vacation time this year. McColley asked if there is a cap on the number of hours an 

employee can use per year. Heath said the policy says employees can carry over 80 

hours total per year. Bisher said Wachtman is working on using his accrued time. He 

took $20,000 of the money this year.  

 

Heath said he would like the City to consider restructuring to add someone in the IT 

department. We could contract or have someone here do it. We are asking Wachtman 

to do a lot. It is frustrating when things don’t get done. We want things put on the 

website, payments, etc. Bisher said Wachtman is good at stringing fiber and fixing 

antennas, but training classes are not his thing. Wachtman said he can retire, but it 

would be nice to have someone in place if he decides to go. Heath said we are doing 

our backup on our own server and not getting a report anymore. This is a critical area. 

 

Bisher said we are not covered as we should be. Heath said we have disparate systems 

all over. There is no consistency of upgrades. This is the first major upgrade in 7-9 

years. We need to have someone who understands flow charts. There are over 100 

computers plus some in vehicles. McColley suggested approaching the county to 

participate. Bisher said they pay us for these services. McColley said they need 

someone more dedicated to their operations. It would be a good time to approach 

them.  

 

Lankenau asked about backup of data. Wachtman said we have a fiber ring and have 

links all over. We back the server with data up to one hard drive and it backs up to 

another drive at a predetermined time within our loop. That drive is backed up to 

another drive at another geographic location. Heath said we do a tape backup each 

day. Wachtman said we have huge amounts of data for cloud backup.  Heath said 

everything is headed to the cloud. Bisher said we are still running in-house. Todd 

Wachtman is the backup along with contract people. Ridley said the State auditors 

may report on this. It could be discussed in the Technology Committee. 

 

Wastewater 

Treatment 

 

 

 

 

TIME: 12:48 

Matt Bilow, Wastewater Treatment Plant Superintendent, said we want to extend our 

time on findings and order. The EPA does not react to political pressure or whether 

you did a good job in the past. They react better when you do things to cause less 

pollution. We would like to spend almost $500,000 for two effluent pumps and a UV 

reactor. This will help extend or change the Long Term Control Plan (LTCP). When 

we built the EQ Basin for $8,000,000, we built two channels for water to go through 

UV, but we only put light bulbs in one side. The cost to do this is $225,000 which is 

significantly less. We are currently leasing a hydraulic unit. That company is being 

bought by another company and this is their cost. We use it every day. The final 

effluent goes through it. The original UV was $600,000. It is at the end of the EQ 

Basin. Another one would maximize the water we could put through the Basin. This 

allows for additional primary treatment and assures that 95% of the water won’t have 



 

Finance and Budget Committee Meeting Minutes 6 11/23/2012 

a discharge. We have to get down to below four a year. With this equipment we 

probably wouldn’t have four. That pollution doesn’t go in the river and that makes the 

EPA happy.  

 

Maassel asked if this money should be spent on projects instead. Lulfs believes using 

this will equipment will influence the EPA in our favor. We are in negotiations with 

them now. We will never see this price again. We put $55,000 in the budget for the #1 

mechanical screen just in case it’s needed. We had to redo #2 screen two years ago. 

(Sheaffer joined the meeting by phone.) 

 

Parks & Recreation 

and Cemeteries 

 

 

 

 

TIME: 1:12 PM   

Tony Cotter, Parks & Recreation (P&R) Director, said we added beer sales and credit 

cards in 2012. We netted about $3,000 for beer sales since July 1. We had a poor year 

last year due to the flood. We rebounded somewhat but not to the level we were 

hoping. It was a hot summer and not as many people were golfing. We are missing the 

20-35 year old demographic at the course. Seniors play exceeded our projections. 

Local golf courses are in a price slashing game to generate cash. He is proposing 

cutting prices. Golfers are looking for a bargain. We would rather have somebody 

than nobody. A private company would not want to buy the course because of 

flooding and there is no way to add 9 holes. 

 

Mayor Behm said citizens voted for the P&R levy and the department should operate 

from that. Citizens can argue with the P&R Board about how to spend this money. We 

lose over $90,000 on the pool, but can’t afford to put water pipe in for residents with 

brown water. Bisher said there are times when we use P&R people in other than P&R 

things. We don’t bill these costs to operations but maybe we should, to show how 

much is actually P&R expense.  

 

Bisher said we cut one person from the Senior Center and one program and raised 

rates. He talked to the Board about this last night. It’s in the budget now with a 

$30,500 subsidy. McColley said Cotter has done a good job bringing Council’s wishes 

to the Board, but they haven’t been receptive. Bisher said we hope the Senior Center 

will put the former recreation person back in their budget as of 1/1/2013. If not we 

will have to pay unemployment compensation for her. 

 

Lankenau said the projected subsidy for 2012 is $-30,560.  Revenues less expenses 

with no carryover equals $-123,600. McColley said they have to keep cutting. Heath 

said capital improvements are paid 100% by the City of Napoleon. We added a new 

park on the south side of the bridge recently and P&R has to maintain it. Oberhaus 

Park has to be maintained. McColley said the Board talked about selling some of 

those parks at a previous Board meeting. Cotter said they discussed two: Wayne Park 

and the one by the hospital. Both were given to the City many years ago. We outgrew 

our .2% levy 10 years ago. The Board considered raising the rate, but decided it was 

better to try for a permanent levy. 

 

Council made recommendations the Board was not comfortable with to implement 

recreation program user fees. This met with opposition. The Board is cognizant of the 

budget crunch and trying to be diligent in finding ways to raise revenues and cut costs 

without cutting services. Mayor Behm said we don’t have time to move in that 

direction. We are borrowing every year. Lankenau said we have to charge user fees or 

cut services or pass another .1% levy. McColley said the P&R Board took an 

important step, but it may not be enough.  

 

Helberg said we gained support from people who pay taxes but don’t have kids in the 



 

Finance and Budget Committee Meeting Minutes 7 11/23/2012 

program. McColley said everyone uses water, sewer, and electric. Bisher said if we 

charge fees, $23,000 was based on the current participation rates. We may not have 

the same participation rates with fees. It depends on how they structure fees. 

Lankenau said they can increase the levy or cut programs. We can’t get there just with 

user fees. They need to live within their budget. Ridley said we may get some 

guidance from the performance auditors. 

 

McColley asked about building a smaller pool. Bisher said it’s personnel and based on 

the ratio of kids to lifeguards. Ridley said we made some inroads and the audit report 

will give direction. Heath said people voting on the levy can be reminded that P&R 

has to maintain the parks. Helberg said P&R was not intended to be completely self-

sufficient. We talked about it being a subsidy. Heath said at one time the number was 

$60,000 including capital.  

 

Cotter said a permanent part-time position was eliminated for the summer arts & 

crafts program. We hope a private entity will take it over. We will take the old golf 

carts to auction. We are required to put in an ADA accessible pool lift at a cost of 

$6,500. This lift cannot be shared with the high school or anyone else. The deadline is 

March 2013. We will take out some old playground equipment that doesn’t conform 

to safety rules. Heath suggested asking Rotary to put new equipment in. Cotter said 

Rotary prefers Oberhaus Park. Bisher said schools have playground equipment that 

should be available within two years. As the old buildings come down, we may be 

able to get some of it. Cotter said we paved the entry drive at Oakwood. The back 

large lot is still stone. It is expensive to pave. We want to chip and seal. 

 

Water Treatment 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  Additional Request 

  Seasonal College  

  Intern: $4,560 

TIME: 2:08 PM 

Scott Hoover, Water Treatment Plant Superintendent, said salaries are down due to 

retirement. We hired three new people this year. Training them costs more. They have 

to go to school and get licenses. Our plant is a Class III. Hoover is the operator of 

record and must have a Class III license. There is paint failure on the water tower. It 

needs recoating within 5-6 years.  

 

The water plant needs significant improvement. We have to make decisions. There is 

not much in this budget for that. Mayor Behm asked if any money is available for 

emergency repairs or carryover. Heath said a $1,800,000 note was issued for 

renovation of the plant. We could expend it for an emergency. Hoover said we have to 

have lime slakers and meet the LT2 rule by 2014. We don’t have standby generators. 

Ours will not run for more than an hour. Bisher said Council will make a decision 

soon. They need to be aware of the position Hoover is in. 

 

Hoover made an additional request for a seasonal position for a college intern from 

May through August. This position would be trained to help do additional testing with 

the TTHM meter during the summer months. There will be mandatory stage 2 testing 

in 2013. The department does not have the manpower to run this meter the way they 

would like during this important testing period. The request is for a total of $4,560. 

 

Fire Dept. TIME: 2:46 PM 

Bob Bennett, Fire Chief, reviewed his department’s budget with those present. He has 

a full-time Firefighter position open. By the time testing is done in May, we won’t 

hire until June. There is a limitation on the number of hours that can be accrued for 

sick leave over 3,600 hours. We pay it out. McColley asked about travel, training and 

education in the last three years. Bennett said part-time staff come and go. Their 

numbers fluctuate and more training is required. They can get full-time jobs 

somewhere else. We haven’t hired anyone for two years, but anticipate hiring a group 



 

Finance and Budget Committee Meeting Minutes 8 11/23/2012 

of people and putting together a recruit class of 8-10 additional people. They would be 

considered part-time on call, but are only paid when they are here working.  

 

Maassel said some places make employees pay if they don’t stay for two years after 

training. Bennett said this costs about $1,000 and we have no policy on it. Paramedic 

training is $7,000 and they have to stay for at least three years or pay the City back at 

a prorated amount. 

 

We will be replacing air packs per regulations in 2014-15 at a cost of $225,000-

$230,000. This was added to the capitalization plan. After that we can look at other 

replacements. Bisher said Chief Bennett has an alternate way to pay part-timers. 

Bennett explained this plan that can save money and give part-timers incentive to stay 

longer (see attachment). Maassel asked if full-time staff will do the same. Bennett said 

they will not. We pay for their certifications per the union contract. Ridley said he 

likes that the plan gives someone a goal. Bennett said this has never been done 

anywhere else.  

 

We pay a third party billing agency 6% to collect our EMS bills. This cost is going up 

which means our revenues are going up. We currently heat with electric resistance 

heat and want to install natural gas heating. We also want to replace the electric 

lighting system with fluorescent. The $19,500 investment will be offset with about 

$7,000 anticipated savings in electric costs. We have a grant request in to update 8 

tornado sirens to comply with new FCC rules. This must be done by 1/1/13. 

 

Police Department TIME: 3:41 PM 

Robert Weitzel, Police Chief, said he does not anticipate filling the Police Lt. vacancy 

for ½ year when Lt. Brown retires.  He made cuts to help balance the budget. He 

started with this year’s budget and decreased it. Some capital costs are replacing 

Glock 22s and two tasers, two police vehicles and 3 patrol BP vests; programming 2 

tasers; and purchasing an AV recording system for detective and patrol officers. There 

are no requests for building improvement. McColley complimented Weitzel for 

having officers write citations on State code instead of City code. 

 

Motion To Adjourn 

 

 

    Passed 

    Yea-4 

    Nay-0 

Motion: Maassel                  Second: Helberg 

To adjourn the meeting at 3:58 PM 

 

Roll call vote on above motion: 

Yea- Behm, Ridley, Helberg, Maassel 

Nay- 

 

 

Approved: 

 

__________________ 

Date 

 

 

_________________________________________________________ 

Christopher R. Ridley, Chair  

 

 



 

Finance and Budget Committee Meeting Minutes 1 11/15/2012 

 
City of Napoleon, Ohio 

FINANCE AND BUDGET COMMITTEE 

Special Meeting Minutes 
Saturday, November 3, 2012 at 8:00 AM 

 

         PRESENT  

Committee Chris Ridley - Chair, John Helberg, Jason Maassel, Ron Behm, Mayor  

City Council 

 

City Staff 

 

 

John Helberg - President, Jeff Lankenau – President Pro-Tem,  Travis Sheaffer 

(arrived at 8:22), Jim Hershberger, Patrick McColley, Chris Ridley, Jason Maassel 

Dr. Jon A. Bisher, City Manager 

Gregory J. Heath, Finance Director/Clerk of Council 

Christine Peddicord, Assistant Finance Director 

Recorder Barbara Nelson 

         ABSENT 

 

 

 

None 

Call To Order 

 

Chairperson Ridley called Finance & Budget Committee to order at 8:20 AM. 

President Helberg called City Council to order at 8:20 AM. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Mayor’s Budget 

City Manager Budget 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

ED - CIC Contract 

Heath said he would go through the remaining budgets with the Committee and 

Council today. He noted that State legislation regarding municipal income tax has 

been presented and has a bill number. The Chambers of Commerce are for these 

changes. This could cost us anywhere from $300,000-$500,000 per year. (Sheaffer 

arrived.) Bisher said businesses say it is expensive to file income tax in multiple 

locations. They want it to be like school systems on the State tax form. Heath said part 

of this is a residency issue. You pay only where you live, not where you work. This 

legislation is subject to amendment at the last minute. He recommends opposing it. 

This is a home rule issue. The State has already taken $500,000 out of our general 

fund. If Council needs to go to Columbus to lobby, there is money in their 

travel/training account. 

 

Heath reviewed the Mayor’s budget and City Manager budget. 

 

Heath said utility billing is funded for reimbursement through utilities. We are 

converting to upgraded software through CMI, but is has been slower than anticipated. 

It should be in place before January 1, 2013. We are contemplating taking a credit 

card at the front counter. Bisher said AMP did a survey and almost all cities charge 

back the credit card fee. Heath said the agreement from MasterCard and Visa just 

changed this year stating that government units can pass on the conveyance fee. He 

recommends taking credit cards at the front counter, but adding on a set fee. He 

believes the judge can pass these fees on also. The Court has $20,000 per year in 

conveyance fees. 

 

Economic Development – CIC Contract 

Heath said prior payments were the payoff of infrastructure for Commerce Drive 

which was finalized in 2011.  There is enough balance to pay for this year and next 

year, but then there is no funding source. McColley suggested selling some of the 

parks. Helberg said we talked about increasing the contribution to have the CIC 

Director contract with Glen Grisdale. Bisher said if we pay extra this year, we won’t 



 

Finance and Budget Committee Meeting Minutes 2 11/15/2012 

have enough money for next year’s contract. Helberg said the CIC can’t have 

infrastructure information available in quick fashion with the staff they have now. 

With Grisdale the CIC could give information back to interested companies right 

away. Mayor Behm suggested trying this for a year to see if it works, then making a 

decision.  

 

Bisher said he didn’t get a request from the CIC for this. Helberg said the CIC wanted 

another $20,000 from each of the City and the County. The County is waiting to see 

what the City is doing. McColley said a new director may have a different direction. 

We could wait until they get a new director. Helberg said the new director will be an 

employee of the County to pay benefits, but will still answer to the CIC. He prefers to 

put the $20,000 in the budget now. The impetus is Fort to Port. We have to be ready. 

Bisher said the CIC used to have three planners. The basis of economic development 

is having parcels, zoning, annexations, etc. available. Companies won’t wait for us to 

argue about these things.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Additional Request 

New Income Tax 

Administrator 

Heath reviewed more of the small funds with little discussion except for: 

 

Special Assessment Debt Listing - Payments 

Heath said this has to do mainly with Ag Districts. Lankenau said it makes property 

unmarketable. Ridley asked if it is feasible that the City absorb this cost if someone 

wants to buy property. Helberg said it could be used as a development tool. Lankenau 

said it wasn’t one property owner’s idea to make his property an Ag District. The City 

asked him to do it to get their money from the State upfront instead of in 20 years. He 

wants to sell the property as farmland. Bisher said as long as he is keeping it in 

agriculture it is okay. Heath said, in his opinion, Council has the ability to approve or 

not approve an Ag District and force the owner to pay. We have to track it for 50 

years sometimes. We could refuse to accept this money in the future, and assess the 

property instead. Bisher said this was implemented for farmland preservation, to keep 

developers from eating up farmland. It was designed to help farmers to not have to 

sell the family farm. Sheaffer asked what % is needed to qualify. Heath said 10 acres 

or $2,500. Bisher said the property had to be farmed.  

 

Capital Improvement – Finance 

Those present discussed installing handicap accessible door openers on the utility 

billing doors. The cost is $2,470 per door. It was agreed to install openers on doors on 

the utility side. Anyone wanting to attend a meeting can enter the building through 

those doors. 

 

Debt Summary 

Those present reviewed the debt summary. Heath said the first 5 pages is debt we 

currently project as of 12/31/13. Lankenau asked what we will do with the $1,800,000 

for the water plant. Heath said we haven’t spent much. When we re-issue debt, we 

will reissue it with a different definition. Bisher said it can remain short-term debt. We 

can pay it off and issue the same number with a new purpose clause. Heath said we 

have to keep our water plant operating in the meantime. Lankenau asked which notes 

on the amortization table have call features. Heath said he will check and find out. 

 

Heath made an additional request for the early hiring of an Income Tax Administrator 

to work alongside the retiring Income Tax Administrator who is projected to retire 

April 30, 2013. This would allow for training and transition at a projected cost of 



 

Finance and Budget Committee Meeting Minutes 3 11/15/2012 

Transition: $18,120 

 

Other Addtl Requests 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

$18,120. 

 

Other additional requests are for an Assistant Law Director, 2 Seasonal Employees in 

Engineering, and 1 Seasonal Person in the Water plant to help with water testing, etc. 

 

Helberg asked if the State will inspect the Scott St. job. Heath said we can do the 

inspection, but we have to meet State standards. Rex won’t have time to do anything 

but Scott Street. That is why they requested two positions. Bisher said Council usually 

asks questions on Monday night and goes into Executive Session to make a decision 

on additional requests. Heath said the budget is a fluid document. Once you pass it, it 

is a spending plan. You can amend it anytime. Lankenau said the budget should be 

finalized Monday night. Heath said we will need legislation on or before January 1, 

2013. The first pay in January starts the last week of December. Heath asked if anyone 

wants CDs of the budget. Helberg would like one after revisions are made.  

Motion To Adjourn 

 

    Passed 

    Yea-4 

    Nay-0 

Motion:  Mayor Behm                    Second: Maassel 

To adjourn Finance & Budget Committee at 11:44 AM 

 

Roll call vote on above motion: 

Yea- Ridley, Helberg, Maassel, Behm 

Nay- 

 

Approved: 

 

 

Date 

 

 

_________________________________________________________ 

Christopher R. Ridley, Chair  

 

 

 



121126 Council Special Meeting Agenda 1 11/19/2012 

City of Napoleon, Ohio 

 

  CITY COUNCIL 
 

in conjunction with the 
 

Finance & Budget Committee 
 

    LOCATION:  City Hall Offices, 255 West Riverview Avenue, Napoleon, Ohio  
 

Special Meeting Agenda 

 

Monday, November 26, 2012 at 6:30 PM 
 

 

A. Amusement License Fees on Gaming 

 

B. Any Other Items That May Properly Come Before Council 

 

C. Adjournment 
 
 
 
  ______________________________________ 
  Gregory J. Heath, Finance Director/Clerk of Council 



 

 

 

City of Napoleon, Ohio 
 

Joint Special Meeting 
of 

Safety & Human Resources Committee 
with 

Freedom, Napoleon, Harrison Townships &  

 Henry County South Joint Ambulance District 
 

LOCATION:  City Hall, 255 West Riverview Avenue, Napoleon, Ohio 

 

Special Meeting Agenda 
 

Monday, November 26, 2012 at 7:30 PM 

 

I. Approval of Minutes: July 23, 2012 (In the absence of any objections or corrections, 

the minutes shall stand approved.) 
 

       II.      EMS Costs & Revenues 

 

III.    Any Other Matters Currently Assigned To Committee                                              
 

 

 

 

Gregory J. Heath, Clerk/Finance Director 
 
 
 



 

Safety & Human Resources Committee Minutes                                                                                                               1 

 
City of Napoleon, Ohio 

Joint Special Meeting 
of 

Safety & Human Resources Committee 
with 

Freedom, Napoleon, Harrison Townships & 

 Henry County South Joint Ambulance District 
 

Meeting Minutes 

Monday, July 23, 2012 at 7:30 PM  
 

           PRESENT 

Committee 

 

James Hershberger – Chair, Travis Sheaffer, John Helberg 

City Staff 

 

 

 

 

Townships 

Others 

Robert Bennett, Fire Chief 

Dr. Jon A. Bisher, City Manager 

Trevor M. Hayberger, Law Director 

Gregory J. Heath, Finance Director/Clerk of Council 

Robert Weitzel, Police Chief 

Ed Hoeffel, Napoleon Township 

Patrick McColley 

Recorder Barbara Nelson 

          ABSENT 

Members 

 

 

None 

Call To Order    

                

Chairman Hershberger called the meeting to order at 7:30 PM 

Approval Of Minutes 

 

EMS Costs & Revenues 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Minutes of the February 27, 2012, meeting stand approved with no objections. 

 

Hershberger asked Heath if there were  any changes in what was presented 

before. Heath said all contracts were signed and returned. The second quarter 

EMS runs and revenues were calculated. Checks were sent. Hershberger said he 

spoke with Ed Hoeffel briefly before the meeting. Ed thought things were 

presented well at the last meeting and everyone was in agreement. Hershberger 

asked if anything needed to be approved at this time. Heath said Council 

approved the contracts by ordinance and approved changes to the contracts. 

 

Chief Bennett said the rates changed at the beginning of the year. The numbers 

are straightforward. Revenues have been going up steadily the last 3-4 years. The 

number of collections are going up. We are at over 52% with collection rates. 

Heath noted there is a natural write-off on those. Bisher said he had nothing else 

to report. 

 

Hershberger asked if there were any other matters or questions. No response. 

 

Motion To Adjourn 

 

 

      Passed 

      Yea- 3 

      Nay- 0 

Motion:  Helberg                     Second: Sheaffer 

To adjourn the meeting at 7:36 PM 

 

Roll call vote on motion: 

Yea – Sheaffer, Helberg, Hershberger 

Nay -  

 

 

________________________________________________ 

James Hershberger, Chair 
 









2013 FlRE 8 EMS CONTRACTS WITH TOWNSHIPS 8 HC S.AMB.DISTRICT 
USING - 2012 PROJECTED & 2013 BUDGETED EXPENSES 8 REVENUES for FlRE 8 EMS 

=ACCOUNT NO # = COST CENTER, CATEGORY 2012 2013 I ZO; 1 I I 20;U;zted I UND DEPT ACCT -- ACCOUNT DESCRIPTION APPROVED PROJECTED APPROVED 
NolCO = No Prlor Year Carwover In Totals-, BUDGET NalCO Wllh Pnor YrfCO BUDGET Twn Pavments 

2012 2012 2013 
OIST% ALLOCATED COSTS BY ENTITY APPROVED PROJECTED APPROVED 

---------.--.------------------- -----------------------.-------- 44.18% 44 18% 44 18% 
I 0 0  00% FIRE COSTS ALLOCATED AT (44 18%) 522,618 47 491,153.48 561,814.97 

ENTlTY ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ 
75 68% City of Napoleon 395 517 66 371 704 96 425 181 57 
1 68% Freedom Townshlp 8 779 99 8 251 38 9 438 49 

13 15% Napoleon Township (wlSec 30 8 31) 68 724 33 64 586 68 73 878 67 
9 49% Harrlson Townshlp 46.610 47 53 316 24 m!u& 

Venficalion Totals-> 522 61847 491 153 48 561 81497 522 618 4 

Total Annual Capltal Per Agreement 90,000.00 90,000 00 90,000 00 ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ 
80 00% City Share of Annual Capital Per Agreement 72 000 00 72 000 00 72 000 00 
20 00% Net Township Share of Annual Capital Per Agreement - 18 000 00 18 000 00 18 000 00 Add,f,onal 

100 00% Cap~tal  Share 

Allocat1,on I 
TOWNSHIP ALLOCATION OF NET CAPITAL 18,000.00 18,000.00 18,000.00 0 00 
(Based on % O i  Net Shared Cost to Township) ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ 

3 59% Henry Co South Amb Dist (Frmly Flatrock Twn ) 646 20 646.20 646 20 0 00 
7 41 % Freedom Townshlp 1,333.80 1,333 80 1,333 80 0 00 

55 75% Napoleon Township 10,035.00 10,035.00 10,035.00 0 00 
33 25% Harrtson Townshlp 5,985.00 5,985.00 5,985 00 0 00 

.. . . . . . . . . . ......... . . . . . . . . . ...... . . . . . .. . . . .......... .. . . .... . . . . ........... . . ... . .... 
100 00% (Revenue Amount Allocated to 242 Flre Eq Fund) I 18,000.00~ 1 8 . 0 0 0 . ~ ~  

18,000 001 0 00 ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ ------------ 























































CITY OF NAPOLEON 

FIREIEMS FINANCE OFFICER SUMMARY 

July 2012 
EfOI 

Client Summar 

Gross Gross Net Adjustments1 Aging 
'ost Month Charges Receipts Refunds Receipts Write-offs Balance Transports 

tuly 201 1 $43,346.02 $23,366.63 $0.00 $23,366.63 -$18,931.50 $136,223.95 58 
L\upust 201 1 $28,536.60 $33,688.10 $0.00 $33,688.10 -$29,631.69 $101,440.76 39 
jepternber 201 1 $76,278.58 $14,893.39 $907.22 $13,986.17 -$16,725.51 $1 47,007.66 102 
Ictober 201 1 $39,768.3 1 $38,552.51 $0.00 $38,552.51 446,338.83 $101,884.63 53 
iovcmber 201 1 $86,639.17 $21,993.46 $0.00 $21,993.46 425,198.71 $141,331.63 124 
lecernber 201 1 -$2,05 1.60 $3 1,859.33 $0.00 $3 1,859.33 -$25,434.35 $81,98635 -4 
anuary 2012 $131,72672 $1 5,400.52 $0.00 $15,400.52 -$15,292.93 $183,019.62 182 
:ebruary 2012 $55,656.1 1 $34,021.00 $0.00 $34,021.00 -$41,430.72 $1 63,224.01 76 
ilarch 2012 $58,927.66 $33,458.48 $0.00 $33,458.48 -$42,508.10 $146,185.09 83 
\piil 2012 $55.356.97 $35,724.20 $000  $35,724.20 -$32,94 1.02 $132,876.84 75 
day 2012 $37,023.72 $16,843.74 $0.00 $16,843.74 -$14,700.10 $1 38.356.72 5 0  
une 2012 $36,415.31 $23,502.15 $0.00 $23,502.15 $3 1,799.38 $1 19,470.50 4 9  
uly 2012 $1 14,270.67 $19,722.80 $0.00 $19,722.80 -$21,345.08 %192,673.29 150 

otal S718,548.22 $319,659.68 r/\ $907.22 $318,752.46 6343,346.42 979 

\vg i Month $59,879.02 $26,638.3 1 $75.60 

i +-Sum of @Charge 
+Sum of @Receipt 

, -$ Sum of @Collect 
A Sum of @Discaunts 

- 

rdietrich
Highlight

















CITY OF NAPOLEON 

FIREIEMS FINANCE OFFICER SUMMARY 

August 2012 

EFOl 

,- - . -- - 

Client Summarv 1 

Gross Gross Net Adjustments/ Aging 
'osi Month Charges Rece~pts Refunds Rece~pts Wr~te-Off5 Balance Transports 

lctober 201 I 
\iovernber 201 1 
kcember 201 1 
anuary 2012 
'ebruary 2012 
vlarch 2012 
ipril 2012 
day 2012 
une 2012 
uly 20 12 
\ugost2012 

\ v g  / Month $62,380.56 $27.764.92 $75.60 

-#&Sum ot@Chaige 
-@-Sum of @Rece!pt 

A S u m  of @Discounts 

I + S u m  of @Collect I 

-- 

age I of 9 

rdietrich
Highlight



















CITY OF NAPOLEON 

FIREIEMS FINANCE OFFICER SUMMARY 

September 2012 

EFOl 

Client Summary 

Gross Gross Net Adjustments1 Aging 
'ost Month Charges Receipts Refunds Receipts Write-offs Balance Transports 

ieprember 201 1 $76,278.58 $14,893.39 $907.22 $13,986.17 -$16,725.51 $147,007.66 102 
Ictober 201 1 $39,768.31 $38,552.51 $0.00 $38,552.51 -$46,338.83 $101,884.63 53 
qovember 201 1 $86,639.17 $21,993.46 $0.00 $21,993.46 -$25,198.71 $141,331.63 124 
lecember 201 1 -$2,05 1.60 $3 1,859.33 $0.00 $31,859.33 425,434.35 $81,986.35 -4 
anuary 2012 $131,726.72 $1 5,400.52 $0.00 $15,400.52 -$15,292.93 $183,019.62 182 
:ebruary 2012 $55,656.1 1 $34,021.00 $0.00 $34,021.00 -$41,430.72 $1 63,224.01 76 
darch 2012 $58,927.66 $33,458.48 $0.00 $33,458.48 -$42,508.10 $146,185.09 83 
\pril2012 $55,356.97 $35,724.20 $0.00 $35,724.20 -$32,941.02 $132,876.84 75 
day 2012 $37,023.72 $16,843.74 $0.00 $16,843.74 -$14,700.10 $138,356.72 50  
une 2012 $36,415.31 $23,502.15 $0.00 $23,502.15 -$31,799.38 $1 19,470.50 4 9  
uly 2012 $1 14,270.67 $19,722.80 $0.00 $19,722.80 -$21,345.08 $1 92,673.29 150 
\ugust 2012 $58,555.09 $0.00 $47,207.51 -$55,222.39 $148,798.48 78 

S473207.51 d& / ieptember 2012 $73,928.89 $16,619.71 $0.00 $16,619.71 -$17,973.48 $188,134.18 9 8  " 
.otal $746,217.02 $334,905.41 $0.00 $334,905.41 -$370,185.09 1,014 

i- 'Month $62,184.75 $27,908.78 $0.00 

\vg I Transporl $735.91 $330.28 

140K 

12OK 

IOOK 

80K 

60K 
+Sum of @Receipt 

40K ! -?,-Sum of @Collect 

20K i A Sum of @Discounts 

OK 

-20K 

40K  

'age 1 of 7 

rdietrich
Highlight















CITY OF NAPOLEON 

FIREIEMS FINANCE OFFICER SUMMARY 

3uiy 2012 

EF02 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY CITY OF NAPOLEON FREEDOM TOWNSHIP (12) CITY OF NAPOLEON 

! 
Client Summary 

Gross Gross Net Adjustments/ Aging 
'ost Month Charges Rcceipts Refunds Receipts Write-offs Balance 'i'ranspons 

4ugust 201 1 $856.82 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $856.82 1 
Ictober 201 1 $859.44 $445.75 $0.00 $445.75 4404.60 $865.91 1 
dovember 201 1 $573.25 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $1,439.16 1 
>ecember 201 I $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 -$856.82 $582.34 0 
anuary 2012 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $582.34 0 
:ebruary 201 2 $0.00 $573.25 $0.00 $573.25 $0.00 $9.09 0 
darch 2012 SO00 $000 $0.00 $0.00 -$9.09 $0.00 0 
Ipril 2012 $881.75 $379.12 $0.00 $379.12 4407.86 $94.77 1 
day 2012 $0.00 $94.77 $0.00 $94.77 $0.00 $0.00 0 

'otal S3,171.26 $1,492.89 SO.00 $1,492.89 -$1,678.37 4 

\vg / Month $352.36 $165.88 $0.00 

ivg / Transport $792.82 $373.22 

1000 

800 

600 

400 

200 / *Sum of @Charge 

0 +Sum of @Receipt -C* S u m  of @Collect 
-200 A Sum of @Discounts 

-400 i 

age 1 of 3 

rdietrich
Highlight

rdietrich
Highlight







CITY OF NAPOLEON 

FIREIEMS FINANCE OFFICER SUMMARY 

August 2012 

EFO2 

SXECUTIVE SUMMARY CITY OF NAPOLEON FREEDOM TOWNSI-IIP (12) C l N  OF NAPOLEON 

Gross Gross Net Adjustments/ Aging 
'ost Month Charges Receipts Refunds Receipts Write-offs Balance Transports 

iugust 201 1 $856.82 $0.00 $000 $0.00 $0.00 $856.82 1 
lctober 201 1 $859.44 $445.75 $0.00 $445.75 -$404.60 $865.91 1 
iovernber 201 1 $573.25 
lecernber 201 1' $0.00 
anuary 2012 $000 
:sbruary 201 2 $0.00 
darch 2012 $0.00 
\prii 2012 $881.75 
day 2012 $000 
iugusi 2012 $898.85 

oral $3,213.29 

\vg 1 Month $357.03 $165.88 $000 

age I o f 3  

rdietrich
Highlight

rdietrich
Highlight







CITY OF NAPOLEON 

FIREIEMS FINANCE OFFICER SUMMARY 

September 2012 

EF02 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY CITY OF NAPOLEON FREEDOM TOWNSHIP (12) CITY OF NAPOLEON 

Gross Gross Net Adjustments1 Aging 
'ost Month Charges Receipts Refunds Receipts Write-offs Balance Transports 

lctober 201 1 $859.44 $445.75 $0.00 $445.75 -$404.60 $865.91 1 
qovember 201 1 $573.25 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $1,439.16 1 
kcember 201 1 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 -$856.82 $582.34 0 
anuary 2012 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $582.34 0 
'ebruary 2012 $0.00 $573.25 $0.00 $573.25 $0.00 $9.09 0 
vlarch 2012 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 -$9.09 $0.00 0 
ipril2012 $881.75 $379.12 $0.00 $379.12 4407.86 $94.77 1 
day 2012 $0.00 $94.77 $0.00 $94.77 $0.00 $0.00 0 
iugust 2012 $898.85 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $898.85 1 
jeptember 2012 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $898.85 0 

rota1 $3,213.29 $1,492.89 $0.00 $1,492.89 -$1,678.37 4 

ivg 1 Month $321.33 $149.29 $0.00 

' 'Transport $803.32 $373.22 

1000 

800 

600 

400 

200 
+Sum of @Receipt 

0 . + S u m  of @Collect 

-200 A Sum of @Discounts 
\ / -400 i, /' 

i 

-600 \ 
\ 

-800 B 

'age 1 of 3 

rdietrich
Highlight

rdietrich
Highlight







CITY OF NAPOLEON 

FIRE/EMS FINANCE OFFICER SUMMARY 

EF02 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY CITY Of NAPOLEON HARRISON TOWNSHIP (13) CITY OF NAPOLEON 

Gross Gross Net Adjustments1 Aging 
'ost Month Charges Rece~pts Refunds Rece~pts Wrlte-Offs Balance 1 ransports 

jeptember 201 1 $1.683.46 $242.94 $0.00 $242.94 -$178.46 $7,977.18 2 
lctoher 201 1 $835.83 $1,95010 $0.00 $1,950.10 -$2,545.54 $4,317.37 1 
Vovember 201 1 $4,018.44 $971.87 $0.00 $971.87 -$1,028.56 $6;335.38 6 
lecember 201 1 $0.00 $2,305.25 $0.00 $2,305.25 -$1,126.26 $2,903.87 0 
anuary 2012 $1.760.40 $665.78 $0.00 $665.78 $282.42 $4,280.91 2 
:ebruary 201 2 $1,71 1.01 $1,425.28 $0.00 $1,425.28 -$1,455.88 $3,1 10.76 2 
vlarch 2012 62,57177 $955.43 $000 $955.43 -$966.16 $3,760.94 3 
Iprii 2012 $1,416.94 $1,029.43 $0.00 $1,029.43 -$636.02 $3,512.43 2 
day 2012 $1,434.80 $912.45 . $0.00 $912.45 -$481.72 $3,553.06 2 
une 2012 $858.56 $535.84 $0.00 $535.84 -$2,253.75 $1,622.03 1 
uiy 2012 $4,089.7 1 $1,626.49 $0.00 $1,626.49 3631.59 $3,453.66 5 

otal $24,686.01 $16,768.89 $0.00 $16,768.89 -$12,172.42 31 

ivg I Transpon $796.32 $540.93 

age 1 of 4 

rdietrich
Highlight









CITY OF NAPOLEON 

FIRE/EMS FINANCE OFFICER SUMMARY 

EXECbTIVE SUMMARY CITY OF NAPOLEON HARRISON TOWNSHIP (13) C l N  OF NAPOLEON 

I 

Client Summary 

Gross Gross Net Ad~ustments/ Azine - - 
'ost Month Charges Receipts Refunds Receipts Write-offs Balance Trailsports 

\iigus1201 I $4,305.09 $4,148.03 $0.00 $4,148.03 -$71 1.58 $6,715.12 5 
jeptember 201 1 $1,683.46 $242.94 $0.00 $242.94 4178.46 $7,977.18 2 
Ictober 201 1 $835.83 $1,950.l0 $0.00 $1,950.10 -$2,545.54 $4,317.37 1 
govember 201 1 $4,018.44 $971.87 $0.00 $971.87 -$1,028.56 $6,335.38 6 
)ecember 201 1 $0.00 $2,30525 $0.00 $2,305.25 -51,126.26 $2,903.87 0 
aliuary 2012 $1,76040 $665.78 $0.00 $665.78 $282.42 $4,280.91 2 
:ebruary 2012 $1,711.01 $1,425.28 $000 $1.425.28 -$1,455.88 $3,1 10.76 2 
iiarch 2012 $2,571.77 $955.43 $0.00 $955.43 -$966.16 $3,760.94 3 
\pril 2012 S1.416.94 $1,029.43 $0.00 $1,029.43 4636.02 $3,5 12.43 2 
nay 2012 $1,434.80 $912.45 $0.00 $912.45 -$481.72 $3,553.06 2 
une 2012 $858.56 $535.84 $0.00 $535.84 -$2,253.75 $1,622.03 1 
uly 2012 $4,089.71 $1,626.49 $0.00 $1,626.49 -$63 1.59 $3,453.66 5 
iugust 2012 $4,018.53 $966.70 $0.00 $966.70 -$1,052.79 $5,452.70 5 

v t a i  $24,399.45 $13,587.56 $0.00 $13,587.56 -$12,785.89 31 

i Month $2,033.29 $1.132.30 $000 

-&Sum of @Charge 
+Sum of @Receipt 
0 Sum of Qcoilect I 
A Sum of @Discounts I 

rdietrich
Highlight









CITY OF NAPOLEON 

FIRE/EMS FINANCE OFFICER SUMMARY 

LXECUTNE SUMMARY CITY OF NAPOLEON HARRISON 'IOWNSHIP (13) CITY OF NAPOLEON 

Client Summary 

Gross Gross Net Adiustmentsl Aelne - 
'ost Month Charges Receipts Refunds Receipts Write-offs Balance Transports 

ieptember 201 1 $1,683.46 $242.94 $0.00 $242.94 4178.46 $7,977.18 2 
Ictober 201 I $835.83 $1,950.10 $0.00 $1,950.10 32,545.54 $4,317.37 1 
Jovember 201 1 $4,018.44 $971.87 $0.00 $971.87 -$1,028.56 $6,335.38 6 
Iecember 201 1 $0.00 $2,305.25 $0.00 $2,305.25 -$1,126.26 $2,903.87 0 
anuary 2012 $1,760.40 $665.78 $0.00 $665.78 $282.42 $4,280.9 1 2 
:ebruary 2012 $1,71 1.01 $1,425.28 $0.00 $1,425.28 -$1,455.88 $3,110.76 2 
Aarch 2012 $2,571.77 $955.43 $0.00 $955.43 4966.16 $3,760.94 3 
\pril2012 $1,416.94 $1,029.43 $0.00 $1,029.43 -$636.02 $3,512.43 2 
day 2012 $1,434.80 $912.45 $0.00 $912.45 -%481.72 $3,553.06 2 
une 2012 $858.56 $535.84 $0.00 $535.84 -$2,253.75 $1,622.03 1 
uly2012 $4,089.71 $1,62649 $0.00 $1,626.49 -$63 1.59 $3,453.66 5 
\ugust 2012 $4,018.53 $966.70 $0.00 $966.70 -$1,052.79 $5,452.70 5 
:eptember 2012 $3,174.75 $1,101.04 $0.00 $1,101.04 -$72.85 $7,453.56 4 

.P**I $25,890.74 $14,445.66 $0.00 $14,445.66 -$12,147.16 33 

L , i Month $2,157.56 $1,203.81 $0.00 

ivg I Transport $784.57 $437.75 

age I of4 

rdietrich
Highlight









CITY OF NAPOLEON 

FIRE/EMS FINANCE OFFICER SUMMARY 

July 2012 

EF02 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY CITY OF NAPOLEON NAPOLEON TOWNSHIP (14) CITY OF NAPOLEON 

Gross Gross Net Adjustments/ Aging 

'ost Month Charges Receipts Refunds Rece~pts Write-offs Balance Transports 

jepternber 201 1 $6,333.34 $1,21679 $0.00 $1,216.79 -$532.55 $1 1,722.28 8 
lctober 201 1 $7,494.27 $6,488.71 $0.00 $6,488.71 -$5,703.73 $7,024.1 1 10 
Vovernber 201 1 $3,262.65 $1,451.99 $0.00 $1,451.99 -$1,145.22 $7,689.55 5 
lecember 201 1 $1,771.37 $936.29 $0.00 $936.29 -$1;816.67 $6,707.96 2 
anuary 201 2 $6,335.16 $638.84 $0.00 $638.84 -$198.65 $12,205.63 8 
'ebruary 201 2 $7,046.52 $3,039.13 $0.00 $3,039.13 -$3,259.19 $12,95383 10 
vlarch 2012 $4,359.75 $2,726.34 $0.00 $2,726.34 -$991.57 $13,595.67 6 
lpril 2012 $6,461.91 $3,491.04 $0.00 $3,491.04 -$2,944.15 $13,622.39 8 
vlay 2012 $3,369.30 $2,246.78 $0.00 $2,246.78 -$1,513.65 $13,231.26 4 
une2012 $971.37 $868.68 $0.00 $868.68 3602.77 $12,731.18 1 
uly 2012 $5,553.25 $2,411.61 $0.00 $2,411.61 -$1,236.11 $14,636.71 7 

-oral $55,543.78 $28,706.70 $0.00 $28,706.70 -$23,810.14 72 

Month $4.628.65 $2,392.23 $0.00 

\vg / Transport $771.44 $398.70 

/ +Sum of @Charge 
+Sum of @Receipt 
e Sum of @Collect 
A Sum of @Discounts 

age I of 5 

rdietrich
Highlight

rdietrich
Highlight











CITY OF NAPOLEON 
FIRE/EMS FINANCE OFFICER SUMMARY 

August 2012 

EFO2 

EXECU'I'IVE SIJ.MMARY CITY OF NAPOLEON NAPOLEON TOWNSHIP (14) CITY OF NAPOLEON 

Client Summary 

Gross Gross Net Adjustments1 Aging 
'ost Month Charges Receipts Refunds Receipts Write-offs Balance Transporls 

9ugus12011 $2,584.89 $3,190.50 $0.00 $3,190.50 -$982.50 $7,138.28 3 
jeptember 201 1 $6,333.34 $1,216.79 $0.00 $1,216.79 4532.55 $1 1,722.28 8 
lctobei 201 1 $7,494.27 $6,488.71 $0.00 $6,488.71 35,703.73 57,024.1 1 10 
qovember 201 1 $3,262.65 $1,451.99 $0.00 $1,451.99 -$1,145.22 $7,689.55 5 
kcember 201 1 S1,771.37 $936.29 $0.00 $936.29 -$1,816.67 $6,707.96 2 
anuary 2012 $6,335.16 $638.84 $000 $638.84 -$198.65 $1 2,205.63 8 
:cbruary 2012 $7,046.52 $3,039.13 $0.00 $3,039.13 -$3,259.19 $12,953.83 10 
i4arch 2012 $4.359.75 $2,726.34 $0.00 $2,726.34 -$991.57 $13,59567 6 
\pril 2012 $6,46191 $3,491.04 $0.00 $3,491.04 42,944.15 $1 3,622.39 8 
~4ay 2012 S3;369.30 $2,246.78 $0.00 $2,246.78 -$1,513.65 $13,231.26 4 
une2012 $971.37 $868.68 $0.00 $868.68 -$602.77 $12,731.18 1 
uly 2012 $5,553.25 $2,41161 $000 $2,411.61 -$1,236.11 $14,636.71 7 
\ugusl2012 $5,064.62 $2,016.07 $0.00 $2,016.07 -$1,353.03 $16,332.23 7 

'olal $58,023.51 S27,532.27 $0.00 S27,532.27 -$22,279.79 76 

1 Month $4.835.29 $2,294.36 $0.00 

\vg / Transport $763.47 $362.27 

1 +Sum of @Charge I 
of @Rece~pt 1 

um of @Collect 
A Sum of @Discounts I 

age I of 5 

rdietrich
Highlight

rdietrich
Highlight











C I N  OF NAPOLEON 

FIRE/EMS FINANCE OFFICER SUMMARY 

September 2012 

EF02 

SXECUTIVE SUMMARY CITY OF NAPOLEON NAPOLEON TOWNSHIP (14) CITY OF NAPOLEON 

Client Summary 

Gross Gross Net Adjustments1 Aging 
'ost Month Charges Receipts Refunds Receipts Write-offs Balance Transports 

leptember 201 1 $6,333.34 $1,216.79 $0.00 $1,216.79 -$532.55 $1 1,722.28 8 
Ictober 201 1 $7,494.27 $6,488.71 $0.00 $6,488.71 -$5,703.73 $7,024.11 10 
dovember 201 1 $3,262.65 $1,451.99 $0.00 $1,451.99 -$1,145.22 $7,689.55 5 
Iecember 201 1 $1,771.37 $936.29 $0.00 $936.29 -$1,816.67 $6,707.96 2 
anuary 2012 $6,335.16 $638.84 $0.00 $638.84 -$198.65 $12,205.63 8 
'ebruary 2012 $7,046.52 $3,039.13 $0.00 $3,039.13 -$3,259.19 $1 2,953.83 10 
Aarch 2012 $4,359.75 $2,726.34 $0.00 $2,726.34 -$991.57 $13,595.67 6 
ipril2012 $6,461.91 $3,491.04 $0.00 $3,491.04 -$2,944.15 $13,622.39 8 
day 2012 $3,369.30 $2,246.78 $0.00 $2,246.78 -$1,513.65 $13,231.26 4 
une 2012 $971.37 $868.68 $0.00 $868.68 -$602.77 $12,731.18 1 
uly 2012 $5,553.25 $2,411.61 $0.00 $2,41 1.61 -$1,236.1 1 $14,636.71 7 
iugust 2012 $5,064.62 $2,016.07 $0.00 $2,016.07 -$1,353.03 $16,332.23 7 
eptember 201 2 $4,228.05 $1,308.25 $0.00 $1,308.25 -$3,908.19 $15,343.84 5 

'P .  I $55,918.22 $27,623.73 $0.00 $27,623.73 -S25,205.48 73 

, r , i  Month $4,659.85 $2,301.98 $0.00 

~ v g  1 Transport $766.00 $378.41 

/ +Sum of @Charge I 1 +Sum of @Receipt 
-+Sum of @Collect 
A S u m  of @Dlswunls 

age 1 of 5 

rdietrich
Highlight

rdietrich
Highlight











CITY OF NAPOLEON 

FIRE/EMS FINANCE OFFICER SUMMARY 

EXECUTI\'E SUMMARY CITY OF NAPOLEON HENRY CO S AMB DIST (I 7) CITY OF NAPOLEON 

Cross Cross Net Adjustments1 Aging 
'ost Month Charges Receipts Refunds Receipts Write-offs Balance Transports 

luly 201 1 $0.00 $400.00 $0.00 $400.00 $400.00 $2,932.3 1 0 
Xugust 201 1 $671.65 $335.21 $0.00 $335.21 -$270.84 $2,997.9 1 1 
jeptember 201 1 $0.00 $476.78 $0.00 $476.78 -$194.87 $2,326.26 0 
iovember 201 1 $970.96 50.00 $0.00 $0.00 -$906.68 $2,390.54 1 
kcember 201 1 $000 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $2,390.54 0 
anuary 2012 $0.00 $897.36 $0.00 $897.36 $0.00 $1,493.18 0 
vlarch 2012 $1,860.58 $73.60 $0.00 $73.60 $0.00 $3,280.16 2 
4pril 2012 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $3,280.16 0 
day 2012 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $3,280.16 0 
line 2012 $0.00 $506.90 $0.00 $506.90 -$415.52 $2,357.74 0 

:otal S3,503.19 $2,289.85 $0.00 $2,289.85 -$1,387.91 4 

ivg 1 Month $389.24 $254.43 $0.00 

I 
! -dl-Sum of@Chaige 

7 
+Sum of @Receipt + Sum of @Collect 
A Sum of @Discounts 

age I of 3 

rdietrich
Highlight







CITY OF NAPOLEON 

FIREIEMS FINANCE OFFICER SUMMARY 

August 2012 

EFO2 

LXECUTIVE SUMR14RY CITY OF NAPOLEON HENRY CO S AMB DlST (17) CITY OF NAPOLEON 

I Client Summary 

Gross Gross Net Adjustments1 Aging 
'ost Month Charges Receipts Refunds Receipts Write-offs Balance Transports 

\"gust 201 1 $671.65 $335.21 $0.00 $335.21 4270.84 $2,997.9 1 1 
jeptember 201 I $0.00 $476.78 $0.00 $476.78 -$194.87 $2,326.26 0 
govember 201 1 $970.96 $000 $0.00 $0.00 -$906.68 $2,390.54 1 
kcember 201 1 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $2,390.54 0 
anuary 2012 $0.00 $897.36 $0.00 $897.36 $0.00 $1,493.18 0 
vlarch 2012 $1,860.58 $73.60 $0.00 $73.60 $0.00 $3,280.16 2 
\prii 2012 $000 $0.00 $000 $0.00 $000 $3,280.16 0 
day 2012 $0.00 $0.00 $000 $0.00 $000 $3,280.16 0 
une 2012 $0.00 $506.90 $000 $506.90 4415.52 $2,357.74 0 

otal $2,831.54 $1,954.64 $0.00 S1,954.64 -$1,787.91 3 

\vg 1 Month $353.94 $244.33 $0.00 

0 Sum of @Collect 
A Sum of @Dlscaunls 

age I of3 

rdietrich
Highlight







C I N  OF NAPOLEON 

FIREIEMS FINANCE OFFICER SUMMARY 

September 2012 

EFOZ 

SXECUTIVE SUMMARY CITY OF NAPOLEON HENRY CO S AMB DlST (17) C l N  OF NAPOLEON 

Client Summary 

Gross Gross Net Adjustments1 Aging 
'ost Month Charges Receipts Refunds Receipts Write-offs Balance Transports 

ieptember 201 1 $0.00 $476.78 $0.00 $476.78 -$194.87 $2,326.26 0 
iovember 201 1 $970.96 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 -$906.68 $2,390.54 1 
kcember 201 1 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $2,390.54 0 
anuary 2012 $0.00 $897.36 $0.00 $897.36 $0.00 $1,493.18 0 
Aarch 2012 $1,860.58 $73.60 $0.00 $73.60 $000 $3,280.16 2 
iprii 2012 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $3,280.16 0 
Aay 2012 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $3,280.16 0 
une 2012 $0.00 $506.90 $0.00 $506.90 -$415.52 $2,357.74 0 

'otal %2,831.54 $1,477.86 $0.00 $1,477.86 -$1,517.07 3 

ivg ! Month $404.51 $211.12 $0.00 

ivg ! Transport $943.85 $492.62 

+#-Sum of @Charge 
+Sum of @Recelpl 

400 C> S u m  of @Collect 

0 

age 1 of 3 

rdietrich
Highlight







   

City of Napoleon, Ohio 

 

CIVIL SERVICE COMMISSION 
 

LOCATION:  City Hall, 255 West Riverview Avenue,  Napoleon, OH  43545 

 

Meeting Agenda 
 

Tuesday, November 27, 2012 at 4:30 PM 
 

1.        Approval of Minutes from October 23, 2012 (In the absence of any objections  
            or corrections, the minutes shall stand approved.) 

 

2. Review with HR Director:  Procedures for Filling Positions  
 

3. Promotional Exam for Police Lieutenant  

 

4.  Rolling of Old Lists 

 

5.       Any Other Matters to Come Before the Commission 
 
 
 
 
 ____________________________________________ 

 Gregory J. Heath, Finance Director/Clerk of Council 



 

1 
 

City of Napoleon, Ohio 

CIVIL SERVICE COMMISSION 

Meeting Minutes 

Tuesday, October 23, 2012 at 4:30 PM 

                  PRESENT  

Members Dr. David Cordes – Acting Chair, Ellsworth Mitchell 

City Staff Robert Bennett, Fire Chief 

Gregory Heath, Finance Director 

Gloria Mikolajczak, Human Resources Director 

Robert Weitzel, Police Chief 

Recorder                               Barbara Nelson 

                 ABSENT 

 

 

David Meekison - Chair 

 

Call To Order Acting Chairman Cordes called the meeting to order at 4:36 PM 

 

Approval Of Minutes 

 

Minutes of the September 25, 2012, meeting stand approved with no objections. 

 

Testing Date For Fire & 

Police 

Heath received written confirmation for the date of May 11, 2013, for agility 

testing at Buckenmeyer Stadium. This was the alternate date approved by the 

Commission at their last meeting. The May 4, 2013, date was not available.  

 

Approval Of Forms For 

Police & Fire Recruitment 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Mikolajczak asked the Commission to set an application deadline for the May 

testing. She recommended advertising the last week in February 2013 and 

accepting applications for the entire month of March 2013. That will allow the 

Commission to finalize everything during the month of April (review 

applications, notify applicants, etc.) She recommended an application deadline 

of Friday, March 29, 2013. 

 

Mikolajczak gave a CD to Nelson of recruitment listings she has used in the 

past. She will also email this information to Nelson and Heath since she is 

retiring as of November 30, 2012. We did not advertise in The Blade the last 

time due to the cost. Chief Weitzel said his department did fine without the 

Blade advertising. He recommended doing free web advertising as well as 

posting on some websites. We sent the advertisement to Northwest State 

Community College and other colleges with police/fire courses. They notify the 

current class along with the last one or two classes of graduates.  

 

Those present agreed that advertising in professional journals was too costly 

and did not bring many applicants. This type of advertising was not done for the 

last testing session. The Chiefs agreed there was a good pool of candidates 

without journal advertising. Chief Bennett recommended advertising with the 

Fire Chiefs Association (cost approximately $50) and Ohio Association of 

Professional Firefighters (OAFF). The union will contact laid off firefighters. 

 

Mitchell located the report from the last testing session regarding best 

advertising results. There was a good response from newspapers. Heath asked if 

a truncated version of the advertisement could be used in The Blade. 

Mikolajczak said the problem is that by law we have to include a certain 

amount of information in that advertisement and this becomes quite costly. 

 

Motion To Set Testing Date 

For 5/11/13 At 8 AM & 

Motion: Mitchell                 Second: Cordes 

To set the testing date for May 11, 2013 at the Napoleon Fire Station at 8:00 am 



 

2 
 

Agility Test After At 

Buckenmeyer Stadium 

 

    Passed 

    Yea- 2 

    Nay-0 

 

for the written test followed by physical agility testing at Buckenmeyer Stadium   

 

 

Roll call vote on above motion: 

Yea – Cordes, Mitchell 

Nay- 

Approval Of Police & Fire 

Recruitment Advertising & 

Dates 

  

Mikolajczak said at some point we may want to have online applications. Our 

applications are currently notarized and this would not be possible online. 

Cordes said we could have more applicants this way, but not as many showing 

up for the test which means a bigger cost for written tests. He would rather keep 

the application process as it is now. Mikolajczak agreed.  

 

Motion To Set Application 

Deadline 

 

    Passed 

    Yea- 2 

    Nay-0 

 

Motion: Cordes                  Second: Mitchell 

To make March 29, 2013 the application deadline date 

 

Roll call vote on above motion: 

Yea – Cordes, Mitchell 

Nay- 

Motion To Approve The 

Application 

 

 

    Passed 

    Yea- 2 

    Nay- 0  

 

Motion:  Cordes                  Second: Mitchell 

To approve the Civil Service application that was used last time for both police 

and fire applicants 

 

Roll call vote on above motion: 

Yea – Cordes, Mitchell 

Nay- 

Approval Of Tests 

 

Mikolajczak said the tests were purchased from International Public 

Management Association for Human Resources (IPMA-HR) last time. Chief 

Weitzel said he recommends keeping the same entrance exam with tip (PO-EL-

202-MC) as last time. Chief Bennett agreed that the same fire test (FF-EL-101) 

should be used. This company has good pricing. The Chiefs have never seen the 

actual test, since all materials are confidential and cannot be released; however, 

the samples they have seen are excellent. 

  

Motion To Use Same Test 

 

 

 

    Passed 

    Yea- 2 

    Nay- 0  

 

Motion:  Cordes                 Second: Mitchell 

To use the same testing company as was used last time for police and fire with 

the specific test numbers at the discretion of the Chiefs 

 

Roll call vote on above motion: 

Yea – Cordes, Mitchell  

Nay- 

Determination Of Credits 

 

 

Chief Weitzel said in the past credits were included for military service, degree, 

auxiliary service, and firefighter (Ohio Fire Fighter II) or police (OPOTA) 

certification. 

 

Motion To Keep Credits 

The Same As Last Time 

 

 

    Passed 

    Yea- 2 

Motion: Cordes                     Second: Mitchell 

To keep the credits that will be applied for police and fire exams the same as we 

did last time for police and fire 

 

Roll call vote on above motion: 

Yea – Cordes, Mitchell 



 

3 
 

    Nay- 0 

 

Nay- 

 

Determination Of How 

Credits Are To Be Applied 

 

 

 

 

Chief Bennett said in the past, applicants must achieve a passing score, then we 

apply a percentage of the passing score as a credit issued to and added to the 

person’s passing score. Cordes said the computer program does this calculation. 

Heath said the computer must be set up correctly in advance in order to 

calculate the proper percentages. 

Motion To Approve Credits 

As Percentage Points 

 

 

 

 

 

 

    Passed 

    Yea- 2 

    Nay- 0 

 

Motion: Cordes                      Second: Mitchell 

For the upcoming police and fire exams, applicants will be given credit of 5% 

(of their test score) for military service, 5% for a degree, 5% for 3 years current 

service with the respective departments in part-time employment or in the 

auxiliary, and 5% for either Ohio Fire Fighter II certification for the fire exam 

or OPOTA Peace Officer certification for police with these percentage points to 

be added to the passing score (at least 70 points) and not to exceed 10% 

 

Roll call vote on above motion: 

Yea – Cordes, Mitchell 

Nay- 

 

Any Other Matters 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Motion To Use Same 

Physical Agility Test 

 

 

    Passed 

    Yea- 2 

    Nay- 0  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Motion To Put Promotional 

Exam for Police Lt. On Next 

Agenda 

 

    Passed 

    Yea- 2 

    Nay- 0  

 

Heath asked about physical agility tests. Chief Weitzel said the physical agility 

test standards was accepted a long time ago, but the Commission can choose to 

change it. It was created by the police department based on Cooper standards. 

Mikolajczak said experts are required to certify any change in this standard. 

The Chiefs are satisfied with the current test. Chief Weitzel said we have 

eliminated quite a few people with the current physical agility test. The 

numbers were tested in the departments at one time.  

 

Motion:  Cordes                  Second: Mitchell 

To recommend to follow the same physical agility testing that is our established 

standard for police and fire as used in the past, last respective test 

 

Roll call vote on above motion: 

Yea – Cordes, Mitchell 

Nay- 

 

Chief Weitzel said he needs a promotional test for lieutenant in the future. This 

does not have to be established now, but he would like it to be put on the 

agenda for the next meeting. We can use the same company as last time. It is a 

written test only with internal candidates. No more than 6 current employees 

are eligible. The Chief does not want to do this test at the same time as the other 

tests. It is simple and quick and takes a total of about two hours. It requires a 

reading list from the test company and 30 day notice to potential candidates. 

 

Motion:  Cordes                  Second: Mitchell 

To place Promotional Exam for Police Lieutenant on the next meeting agenda 

 

 

Roll call vote on above motion: 

Yea – Cordes, Mitchell 

Nay- 

 

Heath said Dr. Bisher wants to hire a replacement for Gloria, but we do not 

know if this will happen. If not, the Commission can have a special meeting 



 

4 
 

after the applications come in to review them and decide who is qualified. 

Cordes said he does not believe the CSC members are qualified to decide who 

meets the standard. Heath said he is the Clerk of the Civil Service Commission 

(CSC) serving at their direction. If the CSC delegates the review of applications 

to him and he does not have time to do this, the CSC has the authority to hire 

someone to do it. Mikolajczak said the Police and Fire Chiefs are good sources 

for this. Chief Weitzel said they may be good resources, but should be one 

person removed from the approval process.  

 

Heath said communication is another issue. Mikolajczak said applicants will 

call with questions. There are study guides available but she isn’t sure which 

tests they are available for so we can’t approve them right now. If so, applicants 

should be told they are available. Chief Weitzel said we can do that in the 

advertisement so they know where to go to purchase one. 

 

Motion To Adjourn 

 

 

    Passed 

    Yea- 2 

    Nay- 0 

 

Motion:  Cordes                    Second: Mitchell 

To adjourn the meeting at 5:35 PM 

 

Roll call vote on above motion: 

Yea – Cordes, Mitchell 

Nay- 

 
 

Date Signed:____________ 

 

_____________________________________________ 

Dr. David Cordes, Acting Chair 

 



   

 

 

City of Napoleon, Ohio 
 

PARKS & RECREATION BOARD  
 

LOCATION:  City Hall Offices, 255 West Riverview Avenue, Napoleon, Ohio  
 

       Meeting Agenda 
 

   Wednesday, November 28, 2012 at 6:30 PM 
 

 

1. Call to Order 

 

2. Approval of Minutes 

 

3. Discussion and/or Action on Recreation Program User Fees 

 

4. Miscellaneous 

 

5. Any other Items to Come Before the Board 
 

 

 

 ____________________________________ 
 Gregory J. Heath, Finance Director/Clerk of Council 
 

 

 

 

 
               






	General Information Memo
	Calendar
	Finance & Budget Committee Agenda
	Finance & Budget Comm. Oct 22nd Mtg Minutes
	Finance & Budget Comm. Oct. 29, 2012 Mtg Minutes
	Finance & Budget Comm. Nov. 2, 2012 Mtg Minutes
	Finance & Budget Comm. Nov. 3, Mtg. Minutes
	Agenda-Special Council Mtg
	Agenda -Safety & Human Resources Comm.
	Safety & Human Resources July 23, 2012 Mtg Minutes
	EMS Costs.pdf
	2012 Projected & 2013 Budget Expenses & Revenue for Fire & EMS
	2013 Fire/Safety Services Budget
	3rd Qtr EMS Billings
	July 2012 Med3000 Client Summary
	August 2012 Client Summary
	Sept 2012 Client Summary
	Freedom Twp/July 2012
	Freedom Twp/August 2012
	Freedom Twp/Sept. 2012
	Harrison Twp/July 2012
	Harrison Twp/August 2012
	Harrison Twp/Sept 2012
	Napoleon Twp/July 2012
	Napoleon Twp/August 2012
	Napoleon Twp/Sept 2012
	Henry Co Amb Dist/July 2012
	Henry Co Amb Dist/August 2012
	Henry Co Amb Dist/Sept 2012
	Agenda-Civil Service Comm

	Civil Srvc Oct. 23, 2012 Mtg Minutes
	Agenda-Parks & Rec Board
	OML Bulletin/HB601



